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MURPHY, Circuit Judge.

MIler was convicted by a jury of conspiracy to possess with intent
to distribute crack cocaine in violation of 21 U S.C. 8§ 846 and possession
with intent to distribute nore than 500 grans of cocaine in violation of
21 U.S.C. 8 841(a)(1l). He was
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sentenced by the district court? to 292 nonths in prison. MIller seeks a
new trial on appeal because of the denial of his notion for a nmistrial
restriction of his cross-exam nation of an infornmant, and Batson viol ati ons
by the prosecution. W affirm

Bryant Troupe, a paid informant, provided information that MIler and
Larry Kerr were involved in a crack distribution ring. Troupe was asked by
governnment agents to purchase drugs fromMIler, and he bought crack from
hi m on August 14, 1996 and again on August 28. Troupe and MIler talked
about the possibility of noving to |arger anounts, and on Novenber 12 M| | er
called Troupe to tell himhe had a kil ogramof crack avail abl e for $26, 000.
They arranged to nake an exchange at an apartnent in St. Louis, and federa
agents obtained a search warrant for the apartnment. Troupe was acconpani ed
to the site by an undercover St. Louis police officer who was posing as the
actual buyer of the crack. Troupe and the undercover officer met MIler and
Kerr outside the apartnent, and they went inside to close the transaction
Federal agents foll owed and arrested MIler and Kerr and seized the crack
cash, a cellular tel ephone and pager, and m scel | aneous papers. Mller then
gave witten consent for a search of his residence, where an additional 748
grans of cocaine, scales, and $1800 in cash was seized.

MIller argues that he is entitled to a new trial because the district
court inproperly denied a notion for a mstrial nade by co-defendant Kerr
During his testinony about the information he provided, Troupe was asked how
he renenbered neeting MIler in 1989. He responded that MIIler had asked
himto put up sone friends fromout of town, including Kerr, and that he had
seen them maki ng crack during the two or three days they stayed with him
No objection was nade to the evidence at the tine, but during a subsequent
sidebar on a different issue Kerr's lawer argued that it was prior bad acts
testinony for which the prosecution had not given
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proper notice. See Fed. R Evid. 404(b). Def endants requested an
instruction to the jury, and the court gave an instruction drafted by Kerr's
attorney which told the jury to disregard any drug activity in 1989. The
next day Kerr's attorney noved for a nmistrial which the court denied.?

Aruling on a notion for mstrial is only reversed if it was an abuse
of discretion. US. v. Flores, 73 F.3d 826, 833 (8th Cir. 1996). Troupe's
testinony cane early in the course of a four day trial, and the remark about
what he had seen in 1989 was al nost inmediately addressed with a curative

instruction formul ated by defense counsel. Such an instruction is ordinarily
sufficient to alleviate any prejudice that mght flow from inproperly
admtted testinony. |d. The evidence at trial tied MIler to several drug
transactions, including the sale of a kilogram of crack cocaine before his
arrest. Oher evidence of involvenent in the drug trade was found in his
resi dence--over 700 grans of cocaine, scales, and $1800 cash. In light of

the lack of any contenporary objection and the considerable record indicating
guilt, the brief reference to the 1989 visit was harnmless, even if its
admi ssion were viewed as error, because its inpact on the verdict would be
slight at nost. Fed. R Crim P. 52(a); Flores, 73 F.3d at 832. The
district court did not abuse its discretion in denying the notion for a
mstrial

MIller also argues that he is entitled to a new trial because of
restrictions on his exam nation of Troupe. He sought to question Troupe
about an “adult abuse order” resulting froman assault on his girlfriend and
about the cause of his depression. The court permitted extensive cross-
exam nation of Troupe, but it prevented counsel fromgoing into the area of
donestic abuse or fromthe opportunity for recross. Evidence had

% Although Miller did not join in the mistrial motion, he argues that he should
be permitted to raiseits denia on apped because of an agreement with the district court
that it would consider any evidentiary objection as having been made by both
defendants. The agreement did not explicitly encompass motions, but we need not
reach the issue of whether Miller has waived the right to complain about the denial of
amistrial because of our discussion on the merits.
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al ready been produced that Troupe was a paid informant, that he had
previously used and sold drugs, that he suffered from depression and had
twice attenpted suicide, and that he had financial difficulties. The court
did not permit inquiry into instances of donestic violence because it was
collateral and had little relevance. The court did not err because extrinsic
evi dence of a witness’ prior bad acts cannot be used to i npeach, and cross-
examnation is limted to only those acts that are probative of the
propensity for truthfulness. Fed. R Evid. 608(b); U.S. v. Nazarenus, 983
F.2d 1480, 1486 (8th Cir. 1993). Since Troupe had al ready been questioned
about his depression there was no need for recross on the subject, and it was
of limted value on the issue of his credibility. The district court did not
abuse its discretion by its restriction on further exami nation of Troupe.

The other basis for a newtrial argued by Mller is that his right to
equal protection was violated by the prosecutor’s striking two black venire
nmenbers on the basis of race. He clains that simlarly situated white
nmenbers were |left on the panel. After hearing the reasons given by the
prosecutor for the strikes, the district court found that they were not based
on race, and our reviewis for clear error. Hernandez v. New York, 500 U.S.
352, 365 (1991); U.S. v. Jenkins, 52 F.3d 743, 746 (8th Cir. 1995). The
prosecutor’s asserted reason for striking venire nenber Sterward was based
on “the cunul ative effect of a nunber of itens,” including her famliarity
with the area of the crinme, the fact that her friends and fanmly had had
problems with | aw enforcenent, and her possible recognition of MIller. The
reason for striking panel nenber McCowan was because he had a relative with
a case pending against the St. Louis Police Departnent and two of the key
Wi t nesses for the governnent bel onged to the departnent.

MIler argues that these proffered justifications were nerely pretext
because simlarly situated whites were not stricken, but his argunent is not
born out by the record. MCowan was the only panelist with a relationship
to a pending case against the St. Louis Police Departnent, and only Sterward
expressed a fanliarity with MIler



The prosecutor struck two white venire nenbers who, like Sterward, had
relatives with drug violations. MIller nade no attenpt at trial to rebut the
race-neutral justifications offered by the prosecution and thus failed to
carry his burden to prove that the justifications were pretextual. U.S. V.
Carr, 67 F.3d 171, 176 (8th Gr. 1995). The governnent also did not use its
perenptory chall enges to renove the greatest possible nunber of blacks from
the jury, which negates an allegation of purposeful discrimnation. U.S. V.
Mont gonery, 819 F.2d 847, 851 (8th Cir. 1987). On this record MIler has
failed to nmake out a Batson violation entitling himto a new trial.

Since there is no nerit to MIller's asserted grounds for a new trial,
the judgnment of the district court is affirned.
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